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Q & A #2 to 
Request for Proposals (RFP) 

Audit Services for State Employee and Retiree Benefits Program, 
 050R7200018 

August 18, 2006 
 

Ladies and Gentleman: 
 
The numerical sequencing begins at question # 7; questions up to #6 were answered in Q&A #1. 
Received the following questions by email, which are answered below for all Offerors to the 
referenced RFP: 
 
7.  Question: Section 3.3.2 makes reference to both a "Draft Audit Report meeting with the   

State...." and to "...quarterly meetings..." with the State.  Further, section 4.4.3 indicates the 
contractor will "Schedule and attend quarterly meetings with the State...."  To the extent 
practical, will the State consider allowing the selected contractor to attend these meetings and 
make these presentations via telephone conference call with e-mail of related documentation, 
or will on-site attendance in person be mandatory for all meetings? 
 
Answer:  On-site attendance would be required for the Draft Audit Report discussion 
meetings between the Contract Auditor, the State and the State’s TPAs.  For the quarterly 
meetings between the Contract Auditor and the State, it is preferred that there be on-site 
attendance by at least one member of the team with conference call availability for other 
members.   

  
8.  Question: Are you discontinuing services with the current auditor, is this a periodic "re-bid,"  

or is this a first time review? 
 
Answer:  This RFP is a resolicitation due to the expiration of the current contract on 9/30/06.   
  

9.  Question: If you are discontinuing services with the current auditor, how many years has the 
current auditor provided these services, what services has the current auditor provided, what 
has been the cost for each of these services, and what is the amount of the current contract 
with the current auditor? 

 
     Answer:  See response to Questions 5 and 6 in Q&A #1.  
 
10. Question: Are recent audit reports prepared by the current auditor available for review? 
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      Answer: Prior audit reports would be available for review by the successful Contractor. 
  
11. Question: May you please provide the names of the entities invited to bid on this RFP, and 

the names of those entities that submitted inquiries or requested clarification of information 
on this RFP? 

 
       Answer:  eMarylandMarketplace (eMM) and our vendor distribution list have the names.  

You have access to eMM and our vendor list is attached.  We will not be providing the 
names of the entities making inquiries; however, by virtue of being on eMM or direct 
distribution, you will automatically receive all Q&As for this solicitation. 

 

12. Question: The RFP does not indicate when a decision will be made for the winning bidder. 
What is the State’s timeline for making this decision?  

Answer:  Each procurement has a number of independent variables making the completion 
date a moving target.  In general, we hope to be able to make awards in connection with this 
solicitation before the end of the year. 

13. Question: Are the performance guarantees in place with the State’s vendors for the first year 
consistent with the 18-month period to be audited or are the guarantees separate for the first 
six months and then “renewed” or start again for the first full fiscal year basis? 

Answer:  Partly.  The 18-month period audit should include a review and sample of two 
plan years; one for the short plan year 1/1/2005 through 06/30/2005 and one for plan year 
7/1/2005 through 06/30/2006.   

14. Question: Are there performance guarantees applicable to ERISA for the “short plan year” 
audit? 

Answer: No. 

15. Question: One of the performance guarantees involves Annual Hospital Records Claims 
Audit.  Behavioral health organizations typically do not conduct these due to the nature and 
usually low dollar amounts of the ancillary charges incurred.  Is this performance guarantee 
in place for your behavioral health TPA? 

Answer:  Performance Guarantees for both contract periods for the MHSA TPA are 
provided in the RFP as part of Attachment L. 

16. Question:  On page 24 (Section 3.4.1), how many years of prior results should be illustrated 
and compared to the current year’s results?                                                                                     

Answer:  Just one; the prior year’s audit results.   

17. Question:  Under section 4.4.2.4, item C indicates “…a list of references for which similar 
actuarial and consulting services have been provided…” Instead of similar “actuarial and 
consulting services” does the State mean “audit services”?                                                                                
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Answer:   Yes, the RFP should refer to audit services.  This has been corrected the RFP via 
Amendment 2. 

18. Question:  In Section 1, the statement is made “statistical review of all claims processing 
elements”, yet the prescription drug audit section requests electronic audits of all claims 
processed during the audit timeframe. Which is correct?                                                                                  

Answer: For the prescription drug audit, the State is requiring a 100% review of electronic 
claims per RFP, Section 3.1.6.6(a).   

19. Question: Based on the fact that the prescription drug audit may include two vendors and    
the Maryland Rx Program, will the State accept different pricing models based on the scope 
of he audit work? 

Answer:  If you mean your price as submitted in the financial proposal, no. The State wants 
your single best solution to the requirements as stated in the RFP.  Please note the RFP, 
Section 1.17 does not permit multiple or alternate proposals.  The State expects a single 
price, which accommodates your risk on one side and considers the competitive 
environment on the other side.   

20. Question: On page 24, the listing of report requirements includes a “listing of claims audited 
to measure processing time”.  If all claims, represented by the claims data provided by the 
State’s vendors, are used to measure processing time, would this requirement be waived? 
Additionally, release of specific claims data would be in violation of the confidentiality 
agreement signed with the administrators and potentially against HIPAA regulations. Will 
the State reconsider this requirement?                                                                    
 
Answer:  The State would not need a listing of all claims used to determine claim-
processing time.  The State would be looking for the results of the Audit Contractor’s review 
of claim processing time. We will amend the RFP accordingly.  

21. Question: For the short plan year (1/12005-6/30/2005), does the State wish to audit this 
period separately (two statistical samples) or together (one statistical sample) with the new 
plan year (7/1/2005-6/30/2006) with the only exceptions being the FSA and pharmacy?                                  

Answer:  The audit should include a review and sample for the short plan year 1/1/2005 
through 06/30/2005 and one for plan year 7/1/2005 through 06/30/2005. 

22. Question:  In the Pharmacy Contract Performance Guarantees, the category Member 
Complaints is listed twice.  Is this intentional?                                                                                                    

Answer:  No, this was an error, it should have only been listed once.                                                                

23. Question:  Is the State interested in services that could be offered that would be in addition 
to the services requested in the RFP?  If so, should the pricing for these services be included 
in the total project fees or may these services be priced and submitted separately?                                            

Answer:  The State is interested in your single best solution.  See the response to Question 
19, above. 
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24. Question: Are technical proposals and financial proposals noted in 3.3.6A made part of the 
written contract for all Contractors, or are these separate documents?  If separate documents, 
have the technical proposals and financial proposals been reviewed/audited to assure 
consistency with the written contracts?                                                                                               

Answer:  Technical and financial proposals are not separate but part of each formal contract 
by reference.  The entire contract, including all incorporated documents, will be made 
available to the contractor that will be auditing contract compliance. 

25. Question:  Does Section 3.3.6 Audit of Contract Terms extend to fully insured benefit 
plans?  If so, should the term "negotiated fees" in Section 3.3.6 A be interpreted to include 
fully insured premiums?                                                                                                                                       

Answer:  Yes. 

26. Question:  Verify plans subject to the second bullet point noted in 3.3.6 A.  (Note: the only 
capitated plans that appear to be subject to audit are two of the three POS plans described in 
section 3.1.5.3.).                                                                                                                                         

Answer:  Correct, currently only two of the three POS plans have some form of capitated 
arrangement.  

27. Question:  Pricing guarantees are noted in section 3.1.6 for the prescription drug plan.  Is the 
pricing guarantee a contract provision to be considered under the scope of section 3.3.6 
Audit of Contract Terms, or under section 3.3.4 Audit of Claims Processing?                                           

Answer: Pricing guarantees may apply under both sections:  (1) under section 3.3.6 to the 
extent that the PBM provided the State with all appropriate contracted pricing guarantees 
(drug ingredient cost, rebates, etc.) and (2) under section 3.3.4 in connection with all claims 
processing elements, such as co-pays, dispensing fees, etc.  Each Offeror should provide a 
response as to what pricing arrangements it believes may apply and how the Offeror will 
verify such arrangements or guarantees as part of the services provided to the State.  

28. Question: Attachment I includes a PBM contract with a term expiring 6/30/2011, which is 
noted as "TO BE AWARDED".  Is this contract included in the 3.3.6?  If yes, what is the 
expected award date?  

     

Answer: Yes, please review the RFP, Section 3.1.6.3 and also Attachment J – 4a & 4b 
Prescription Drug Plan.  

29. Question: Do the clinical requirements for the prescription drug audit work apply to the 
contract currently being administered by the "former" PBM or will these requirements be in 
place for the "new" PBM once the protest has been resolved?                                                                            

Answer: Both 
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30. Question: Can the electronic documents sent to the State on CD be in Adobe Acrobat format 
rather than Excel or MS Word?                                                                                                                  

Answer:  Yes.  See Amendment 2. 

31. Question: Is a copy of the RFP available in MS Word or Excel rather than Adobe Acrobat?                           

Answer:  Yes.  Any Offeror that would like a copy of the RFP in Word format (minus 
Attachment L which is only in .pdf format) should request an electronic version of the RFP 
from the Procurement Officer.   

 

 
Date Issued:  August 18, 2006   By                 <signed>           . 
        Michael Howard 
        Procurement Officer 
 
 
Atch 
Vendor Distribution List 
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Audit Direct Distribution List 
 
Bennett, Hutt & Company 
10500 Little Patuxent Parkway 
Suite 640 
Columbia, MD 21044 
Attn: Louis G. Hutt, Jr. 
410-730-1429 
LOUHUTT@BENNETTHUTT.COM
 
Bond Beebe 
4600 East-Highway, Suite 900  
Bethesda, Md 20814 
Attn: Jeff Gordon 
301-272-6000 
(Debbie Bartlett: Secretary) 
dbartlett@bcpa.com  
 
Callis & Associates 
6508 Pin Oak Court 
Clinton, MD 20735 
Attn: Virginia Callis 
301-868-7569 
axcelconsulting@aol.com
 
Grant Thornton 
2070 Chain Bridge Road, Suite 375 
Vienna, VA 22182 
Attn: Omar Daniels 
703-637-2843 
omar.daniels@gt.com
 
Health Claim Auditors, Inc. 
1000 N Green Valley Parkway, Suite 440-324 
Henderson, NV 89014 
Attn: John Spalten 
1-800-351-1628 
jspalten@aol.com
 
Rufus Ingram, CPA 
6205 Park Heights Avenue 
Baltimore, MD 21215 
410-358-3538 
RTICPA@comcast.net
 
Josen Company 
10430 Shaker Drive, Suite 210 
Columbia, MD 21046 
Attn: Harsh Singh 
410-964-3335 
HARSH@JOSENCOMPANY.COM
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William M. Mercer, Inc. 
1255 23rd Street 
Suite 5000 
Washington, DC 20037 
Dennis.treat@mercer.com
 
William M. Mercer, Inc. 
3 James Center 
1051 E. Cary Street 
Richmond, VA 23219 
Attn:Jan Moser, Senior Associate 
804-344-2618 
Jan.moser@mercer.com
 
Wingate, Carpenter & Associates, CPAs 
1010 Vermont Ave, N.W., Suite 420 
Washington, DC 20005 
Attn: Malcolm Carpenter, CPA 
mc@wingatecarpenter.com
202-537-1958 
 
LDM & Associates 
4822 Cave Creek Court 
Waldorf, MD 20602 
Attn: Lisa Murrow, President 
(800)-875-9113 
ldmassociates@yahoo.com
 
Ernst & Young 
6255 Bridle Court 
Harrisburg, PA 17111 
Stephen A. Baloga, Partner 
Cell Phone: 717-329-2036 
Office: 202-327-5642 
Fax: 866-251-2926 
Stephen.baloga@ey.com
 
Hall Consulting & Audit 
121157 West Linebaugh Avenue 
Tampa, Fl 33626 
Steve Hall 
(813) 362-6290 
stevehall@hallconsulting-audit.com
 
HealthCare Resolution Services, Inc. 
1504 Greenview Dr., Suite 102 
Laurel, MD 20708 
Brenda Doles 
301-497-1187 
Fax: 301-317-1771 
bdoles@hcrs-inc.com
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Have Penn Will Travel, LLC 
210 E. Lexington Street, Suite 204 
Baltimore, MD 21202 
Susan Middaugh 
410-997-0700 
Fax: 410-997-7260 
smiddaugh@aol.com
 
Integrated Healthcare Auditing and Service, Inc. 
14502 Greenview Dr., Suite 410 
Laurel, MD 20708  
301-206-2006 
Fax: 301-369-3454 
Clyde R Burke 
Clyde.burke@ihas.com
 
Cherry Consulting of the Carolinas, Inc. 
6227 Gothic Court 
Charlotte, NC 28210-7009 
Rebecca Cherry 
704-556-1415 
Fax: 704-643-5901 
Rebecca Cherry 
cherryconc@aol.com
 
Haynes, Inc. 
8380 Colesville Road, Suite 500 
Silver Spring, MD 20910 
Robert Riley 
301-495-1500 
Fax: 301-495-9776 
rreiley@haynesinc.com
 
Matt, Eugene 
30 Saddle Drive 
Port Townsend, WA 9368-9537 
Eugene Matt 
360-385-1205 
Fax: 360-385-1205 
ecmassoc@aol.com
 
Human Capital Consultants, LLC 
8850 Stanford Blvd, Suite 2300  
Columbia, MD 21045 
Milton J. Hall 
410-953-0003 
Fax: 410-953-0332 
mhall@humancapitalllc.com
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Walker Benefit Services 
P.O. Box 134 
Glyndon, MD 21071 
Carl Walker 
carl@walkerbenefitsservices.com 
410-883-7094 
 
Alternative Solutions-Lifeline 
Beverly Harris 
807 Irvington St.  
Suite 302 
Oxon Hill, Maryland 20745 
301-358-2237 
harris807@comcast.net
 
Healthcare Quality Assistance Group, LLC 
Michael Carlisle 
5728 Meyer Ave 5728 
New Market, Maryland 21774 
301-613-6977 
mcarlisle@hcquagroup.com
 
Managed Care Advisors 
Lisa Firestone 
2 Wisconsin Circle  
Suite 800 
Chevy Chase, Maryland 20815 
301-951-4344x105 
Lfirestone@managedcareadvisors.com
 
Medical Technology Management Services Corporation 
Andre Charles 
914 Silver Spring Avenue 
Suite 204  
Silver Spring, Maryland 20910 
443-226-7854 
acharles@mtmsc.net
 
TCAssociates 
Tony Coombs 
6551 Loisdale Court 
Springfield, Virginia 22150 
703-822-8228 
Tcoombs@tcassociates.com
 
Tcoombs & associates 
Tony Coombs 
8241 Backlick Road 
Suite K 
Lorton, Virginia 20164 
703-339-9373 
tcoombs@tcassoc.com
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Sources from Internet—No other info available but sent copy of RFP and on the list 
 
jgraham@hhcgi.com  
dbertossi@larsonallen.com
rgoode@medreview.com  
rquintin@cbh.com  
conlan@healthaudit.com  
rfrcek@beneplanaudit.com
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